
 

1 
 

 

Newtonville Area Council - Meeting Minutes  

Thursday, January 14, 2021   7:00 PM 

Meeting Location: Online via Zoom 

Attendees: 

• NAC Members:  Peter Bruce (Pres), Susan Reisler (VP), Kartikey Trivedi (Treasurer), Martina 

Jackson (Secretary), Carolyn Gabbay, Jessica Aker Archer, Dana D’Agostino, Kirill Alshewski, 

Pamela Shufro  

• City Government: None 

• Approximately 10 members of the public   

President Peter Bruce called the meeting to order, confirmed the presence of a quorum and because of 

technical difficulties he and VP Susan Reisler were experiencing asked Treasurer Kartikey Trivedi to run 

the meeting while his internet connection was bad.  Peter also appointed Carolyn Gabbay as Secretary 

Pro Tempore for the meeting to take the minutes. 

1. New Art Center Request for Letter of Support for Grant 

Emily O’Neil, of the New Arts Center, with Board President Dewey Nichols attending, spoke about 

the New Art Center’s request for a letter of endorsement from the NAC for the Center’s application 

for a $100,000 grant from the Massachusetts Cultural Facilities Fund to cover one-half the cost of 

COVID-related changes made to the building for which they have to fundraise to match 1-to-1.  She 

gave an overview of the Center’s activities, the shutdown necessitated by COVID, their reopening 

planning and investments made in facilities’ modifications for COVID-related safety needs and other 

longstanding physical improvement needs (such as ventilation and classroom modifications for 

distanced spacing and ADA compliance).  A draft letter of support having been proposed by the 

Center and circulated in advance to NAC members, following discussion, Carolyn moved, and 

Martina Jackson seconded, the motion and it was unanimously: 

VOTED: To authorize Peter Bruce to sign a letter of support for the New Arts Center’s 

Massachusetts Cultural Facilities Fund grant application for issuance in the name of the NAC.  

2. Enforcing the Washington Street Vision Plan in the Oakley Spa area  

Kartikey explained that a developer is proposing to build a 4-story, 28 apartment-complex in the 

Oakley Spa area (i.e., 969-979 Washington Street). He noted the project under review by the 

Planning Department exceeds the Vision Plan’s recommended building height of 3 stories for the 

area.  



 

2 
 

Discussion ensued about whether the City should maintain consistency with the Washington Street 

Vision Plan document that was developed in a public process and at significant cost, as well as what 

types of development might be appropriate in the area of the Oakley Spa.   

Carolyn spoke in favor of keeping to the Vision Plan’s parameters, requiring adequate parking, and 

building in context to the surrounding buildings without allowing the new and anomalously large 

Trio complex redefine the “context” of the area.   

Peter Harrington said that he would support a development of the appropriate size for the property 

and urged ongoing involvement from an early stage in the project plans.  He made a number of 

points about the proposal, including: 

 

• The City paid $500,000 to the Principal Group to develop the Washington Street Vision Plan, 

a page of which is dedicated to this site and shows existing and possible alternatives and 

recommends limiting heights to 3 stories.  

• Current zoning allows 3 stories with a special permit and the 3 lots involved are mostly 

zoned for residential with an allowance of 27.5 units, so the developer should be rounding 

down rather than up as to the number of units to build. 

• The proposal raises the question of “spot zoning” if the City were to allow 4 stories. 

• Washington Street should be kept from becoming an overly traffic-congested street. 

• Four stories would be way out of context for the area. 

• If the buildings are replaced as proposed, the resulting rents would likely be too high for the 

cleaners, laundromat and hair salon which have long been a large part of the neighborhood; 

and 

• The issue seems to involve conflicting desires for open space versus lesser building height 

(i.e., some argue that providing for open space tends to lead to requests for taller buildings, 

whereas shorter buildings tend, ostensibly, to leave more open space on a property).   

 

Peter Bruce suggested finding out how far along the process is, and if the proposal is being taken 

seriously. He concurred that the Washington Street Vision Plan should be respected and suggested 

writing a letter from the NAC to that effect.  He also floated the idea that the City might try to locate 

affordable housing on the site.   

Martina agreed with both Peters.  She expressed the view that the area could be developed in an 

appropriate way and that 3 stories would be fine if the project conforms to the area, like the 

apartments across Walker Street, which she speculated were probably more affordable than Trio.  

She advocated for a project that provides more affordable housing to meet the needs of people who 

want to downsize or young people who cannot afford big down payments.  

Kartikey asked for the reasons given for the request to change the current zoning.   

Carolyn moved and Peter seconded and, with 8 in favor and Jessica Archer not responding to the call 

to vote, it was: 

Voted: To urge the City not to allow 4 stories, to stay with 3 story current zoning and 

Washington Street Vision Plan, and to stick with the current context for the area which 



 

3 
 

is defined by the surrounding buildings, not including Trio, which is an anomaly to the 

area and should not redefine the entire area’s context. 

Councilor Norton reported that the project is early in the process, that there has been no vote on 

changing the Washington Street Vision Plan, and that there is to be a meeting soon with abutters. 

3. Democratizing the zoning reform process 

Peter and Kartikey opened discussion on this topic by playing a video clip of Ruthanne Fuller 

(available here:   https://youtu.be/TDDv_apT0H4) answering a question at a mayoral candidates’ 

debate about how citizen input should be achieved.  In the video candidate Fuller stated her desire 

for genuine and independent input from residents and businesses with a variety of viewpoints, 

holding up as her model Somerville’s 3-year process for development of its 20 Year Plan.  She 

emphasized that that model process was directed by a steering committee of 60 “residents, 

advocates, elected officials, and businesspeople,” not by their Planning Department.  She also 

stressed the importance of a strong emphasis on obtaining public input, including by print and 

online public surveys, using a collaborative and transparent process and her intention to agree on 

the goals and create a common vision for Newton’s future.  

Peter Bruce commented on the contrast between what she promised as a candidate and what has 

been happening since she been in office as Mayor, stating that the goals and process seem to have 

been led by a few people on ZAP and the Planning Department. He suggested the NAC urge the 

Mayor to adhere to her campaign promise.  He noted that, after community expressions of anger 

about zoning redesign proposals, there appears to have been a temporary retreat by the City.  He 

noted that more than 2,500 residents took the NAC’s survey and 900 residents took the Principal 

Group’s survey, but that the current process has so far actively engaged involved only about 500 

people.   

Carolyn suggested that Peter Bruce draft a letter urging a process reset and getting community 

input, including quoting the campaign promises. 

Jessica commented that a letter would not suffice.  She recommended going to meetings, not just 

sending a letter, and organizing a larger forum with other AC’s and other modes for meaningful 

public participation.  

Martina noted that there are many different approaches, none of which preclude starting with a 

letter with documentation of what has been said.  She said she felt that would be a good beginning. 

Peter Bruce agreed.  He noted that the letter can be circulated more broadly though social media, 

etc., and people may want to consider a petition later on. 

Kirill asked Jessica to prepare a 5-minute presentation on community engagement methods, which 

Jessica agreed to do. Kirill suggested starting with a letter and carry on from there. 

Jessica urged the letter to include suggestions about asking ways to be involved, rather than just 

pointing to a broken promise. 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fr20.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001Yq9hyXgtCY9rPK_28L110Z2mErsn_DJX6pPv1G1lq0WlEU07kCJQv2WrGNY2OuRNrcrPobVNwRoYr883VL1JNjnVIU2297mz4aM7rbOt9KnuIU1xpM9utkyZMf3JEIw5v30e9ypGKeAAW0N08Tb2Lw%3D%3D%26c%3DWpi0T-qmKC0cC0H-OCgNECkN6LyA3wXa4ll6n-RUH6JMa_0Bc0LDew%3D%3D%26ch%3DzRJAe3ZWOCdHoo88U4UUS53sZBFvrN1vcUBXez3pPBh9Xb6yJVZw8w%3D%3D&data=04%7C01%7Ccgabbay%40newtonma.gov%7Caeab250ec72a4d7581fb08d8b83d47ba%7C2a3929e0ccb54fb381402e2562c90e96%7C0%7C0%7C637461920655272994%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Uw77u5yZeXV2N725jNDA%2BDxKgqtS3tZnZ29Hiw3DfUc%3D&reserved=0


 

4 
 

Kartikey agreed, but felt it appropriate to include a reminder to the Mayor about what she promised 

and focus on possible solutions and produce an action plan, or at least a few suggestions.  He felt 

putting thoughts together in this way would be a constructive way to prompt a response. 

Pam felt the letter should be worded in terms of reviewing the campaign promises, which were 

great ideas and would be a good way to carry on during the pause. 

It was agreed that no vote was needed currently, and that Peter would prepare a draft letter, taking 

note of the suggestions about tone, for review and action by the NAC. 

4. Reforming the police  

Peter Bruce noted that it is not clear whether the recent death of Mr. Conlon in Newton Highlands, 

in an interaction with the police was justified.  Body cameras, he pointed out, were not used. 

Martina noted that the event was a tragedy for the family and community.  She expressed 

confidence in the District Attorney and noted that we do not know much about the facts.  She also 

noted that there was a mental health worker on scene. 

Carolyn said that it would be unfortunate to jump to conclusions, noting that the public 

demonstration had been unfortunate with regard to COVID control.  She also noted that the police 

had not been able to bring the decedent under control with a non-lethal “bean bag” shot gun or 

taser. 

Jessica commented that there is a taskforce dedicated to reforming the police and that thoughts can 

be sent individually to that taskforce.  She stated that people are upset about people being killed, 

police forces being so militarized, and why mental health personnel were not there.  She said that as 

a mental health issues sufferer herself, she knows what happens to others with uncontrolled mental 

health issues.  She expressed that the police need to be trained on that, versus what she considered 

the current prevailing ideology among the police force. She also observed that if the NAC does not 

feel comfortable addressing that, perhaps the NAC should not take a stand. 

Peter Bruce questioned why Newton Police are not required to wear body cams and noted that 

there have been no reports released from the Police Reform commission yet. 

Carolyn suggested having some compassion for the officers involved as well.  She noted that it is on 

record that a mental health worker was, in fact, on scene.  She said that the Police Reform 

Commission would be the place to discuss police body cams, rather than the NAC. 

Peter Harrington noted that police militarization took place over a decade when unused military 

equipment was sold to police forces.  On the other hand, he said, society has changed, the mission 

of the police has changed, and they are asked to do a lot more than previously, so that perhaps their 

training has not changed enough.  He agreed that the NAC would not be the place to get involved in 

the investigation into the shooting and possibly have a negative impact on the outcome. 

5. Administrative issues 

A.) New directions for the NAC?  

A draft Annual Report had been circulated previously but was not acted upon at this meeting.  

Discussion ensued on possible new directions for the NAC, including: 



 

5 
 

• Jessica noted that there had been discussion last year about appointing liaisons to attend 

and report on committees’ meetings.  She volunteered to do so. 

• Pam concurred and suggested developing areas of specialty, noting that zoning and planning 

is broad and complex, covering many issues and sub-issues (like affordability or 

sustainability and their many aspects.) She volunteered to cover one aspect.  

• Peter Bruce liked Pam’s suggestion and suggested that liaisons might also recommend 

readings about topics discussed at the committee meetings. He noted that things get 

complex, especially with ZAP covering lots of important topics. And, he urged all NAC 

members and others to tune in to ZAP meetings periodically.  

• Carolyn suggested having about 3 focus areas over the next year to concentrate efforts and 

achieve results. 

• Martina agreed with Carolyn and suggested focusing on specific areas of concern with other 

Area Councils.   

• Peter asked whether the NAC might have any role in connection with mass COVID 

vaccinations, such as finding out where and when the public could get vaccinated and be 

helpful with the implementation of the vaccine roll out.  Jessica said that she has been 

following the topic at work and could provide information.  Carolyn said she felt that this 

was an example of the kind of thing that is beyond the scope and expertise of the NAC and 

could result in spreading misinformation.  Jessica took umbrage at the comment and left the 

meeting.  

B.) Electing new officers; creating a new IT position   

Peter next turned to the election of new officers and expressed interest in running for President 

again.  But, he added, that if anybody else wanted to run for the position, he might support that 

person, as continuity of officers would be good, since both Susan Reisler and he were term-

limited. 

Carolyn nominated Peter and Martina seconded. Peter reconfirmed the presence of a quorum.  

Peter stated that he liked the current direction of the NAC and if re-elected wants to continue 

the current focus and use social media more.  The 8 members of the NAC present unanimously  

Voted: To elect Peter Bruce President of the NAC for another term. 

Peter nominated, and Carolyn seconded, Kartikey to be Treasurer again.  Kartikey agreed to 

serve and no other candidates expressed interest. The 8 members of the NAC present 

unanimously  

Voted: To elect Kartikey Trivedi Treasurer of the NAC for another term. 

Kartikey proposed creating the post of Chief Technology Officer as a new position and 

nominated Kirill.  The position would involve things like posting reports and agendas and files to 

the website, moderating Zoom meetings and other technology-related matters.  Carolyn 

seconded and Kirill agreed to serve.  The 8 members of the NAC present unanimously  

Voted: To elect Kirill Alshewski Chief Technology Officer of the NAC. 



 

6 
 

It was noted that it would require amending the bylaws by a 2/3 majority vote to create the 

position.  It was also noted that Zoom meetings will continue for a period of months and might 

even be desirable, at least periodically, following the post-COVID return to normal. 

Nobody expressed interest in running for the position of Secretary.  It was agreed that Peter 

would appoint a rotating Secretary Pro Tempore to prepare the minutes, noting the 

requirements for records retention and posting, including posting notes/a draft within 10 days 

of a meeting. Peter will talk with David Olson about the position remaining open. 

Peter nominated Kartikey for the position of Vice President and Martina seconded.  Kartikey 

accepted. The 8 members of the NAC present unanimously  

Voted: To elect Kartikey Trivedi Vice President of the NAC. 

C.) Preparing for Ward 1 and Ward 2’s At-large City Council election debates with other Area 

Councils. 

Carolyn reported on the meeting she and Jessica attended with the Area Councils’ working 

group that is organizing the candidate debates for the upcoming special municipal election on 

March 16, 2021: 

• The debate is set for Sunday, February 21 at 2 PM via Zoom and will last for two hours, one 

hour being devoted to each of the Ward elections. 

• The working group agreed on a moderator for the event (journalist Marjorie Arons-Baron). 

An invitation is being extended to a potential back-up moderator in case the primary 

moderator is unavailable. 

• Flyers will be issued electronically and in various media, using the outreach vehicles used for 

prior debates, and any new ones that have grown up in COVID times.  

• Questions/subject matter on which to inquire of the candidates at the debate will be 

solicited from the Area Councils and members of the public. The working group asked the 

City to establish a new email address with a “catchy” name which has now been set up (i.e., 

areacouncildebates@newtonma.gov) to which question/topic suggestions can be submitted 

by members of the public and candidates/campaigns. This email address will appear in the 

flyers and other media outreach.  Behind-the-scenes emails to that address will be 

forwarded to all members of the working group.  The suggestions will be distilled by the 

working group and forwarded to the moderator(s).  The moderator will decide on the final 

questions and will be encouraged to press candidates for answers with follow up questions, 

as necessary. Candidates will be given an opportunity for a short opening and closing 

statements. In addition, candidates will be given the opportunity to ask one question of 

his/her opponent just prior to the closing statements.  

• Working group members disclosed their alignments with various campaigns and pledged not 

to share any information about the questions with any of the campaigns/candidates. 

• As a resource to be used in preparations for future debates, the working group will 

assemble a “how to” booklet based upon the work that is done for this debate cycle. 

D.) Preparing for Village Day 

outlook-data-detector://0/
mailto:areacouncildebates@newtonma.gov


 

7 
 

Peter introduced Nathanial Lichtin (President of the Newton Highlands Area Council) who 

explained that since they cannot hold their Village Day on their traditional June date, they are 

looking for a date in September or early October.  He suggested that the four Villages hold their 

respective events weekly in September.  Saturdays and Sundays were discussed, but local 

businesses expressed concerns about Saturdays creating business disruption. Dana noted that 

Sunday, September 26th is the target date for Newtonville.  Nathaniel said that the Highlands 

and Waban Area Councils would work around the dates used by Newtonville and Upper Falls. 

E.) Honoring David Olson 

Noting City Clerk David Olson’s upcoming retirement in February, it was agreed that Peter Bruce 

would prepare a draft text for a framed certificate of appreciation that could be used as a joint 

proclamation by all four Area Councils honoring his service, which would be approved at their 

respective February meetings. Carolyn suggested that any framing be done at a local Newton 

merchant.  Martina volunteered to check with the City Council for their plans. 

 

F.) Review and approval of December minutes.  

The draft minutes of the December 2020 meeting having been circulated to the NAC members 

for review in advance of the meeting and having been adjusted for minor edits, were presented 

for approval.  Carolyn moved approval of the minutes, Peter seconded the motion and the 8 

members of the NAC present unanimously:  

Voted:  To approve the minutes of the December 2020 meeting of the NAC.  

Carolyn moved to adjourn, Martina seconded the motion and the 8 members of the NAC 

present unanimously:  

Voted: To adjourn the meeting. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Carolyn Jacoby Gabbay 

Secretary  

 


